
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
(*In order discussed) 


 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
February 4, 2016 
6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Gaylord Schaap 
 Tim Lipinski 
 Sukey Robb-Wilder 
 Pip Marquez de la Plata 
   
Board Members Absent: Richard Holmer 
 
  
Staff in Attendance: Stephen Mack, General Manager 
 Julie Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
  
Others in Attendance:     Robin Donoghue, District Legal Counsel 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Tim Lipinski at 6:35 p.m.   
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:36 
p.m.) 


 
The General Manager announced that Item III-D (Approval of General Manager's ballot selection of 
Albert Giordano for the seat of LAFCO Special District Representative Class I) could be removed 
from the Agenda.  Discussion ensued.  There were no objections. 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:38 p.m.) 
 
Director Lipinski reviewed the items on the Consent Calendar.  Director Robb-Wilder moved to 
approve the Consent Calendar as submitted. Director Marquez de la Plata seconded.  Motion 
carried 4-0.  The following items were approved:  
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the January 7, 2016 Regular Board Meeting. 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payment. 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence: (None.) 
 
D. (Removed from the Agenda). 


 1







 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:39 p.m.) 
None. 
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:39 p.m.)* 
     *in the order discussed 
 
V-A. (6:39 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re District Property at 17448 River Lane.  The GM 


provided an overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  Comments were made by 
Robin Donoghue.  Further discussion ensued.  No action was taken.   


 
V-B. (7:13 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re 2015-16 1st Quarter Actual vs. Budgeted 


Operations and Capital Expenditures and County Balances.  The GM provided an 
overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.  No action was taken.   


 
V-C.  (7:32 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Possible USDA Loans and/or Grants for CIP 2017.  


The GM provided an overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.  Direction was given to 
staff to continue moving forward with USDA loan/grant funding and to investigate 
possible alternatives to Meyers Nave et al. for bond counsel on a USDA loan.  


 
V-D.  (7:50 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Progress on the FY 2017 Budget Preparation.  


The GM provided an overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  A Budget 
Committee meeting was scheduled for Wednesday, February 17 at 2 pm.  Direction was 
given to staff to proceed with a 3% rate increase.   


 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:03 p.m.) 
 
The General Manager reported on the following items: 
1. Water Production and Sales 
2. Leaks 
3. Guerneville Rainfall 
4. 2016/2017 CIP 
5. Toilet Rebate / Direct Install Program 
6. In-House Construction Projects 
7. Gantt Chart 
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 
(8:14 p.m.) 


 
Director Lipinski announced that work had begun at the former Spooner's Resort.   
 
 


VIII. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (8:17 p.m.) 
 
1. Riverlane property 
2. USDA Loans/Grants for CIP 2017 
3. FY 2016-17 Draft Budget 
4. Notice of Completion for CIP 2016 
5. FY 2014-15 Audit 
 
 


 2







 3


ADJOURN 
The meeting adjourned at 8:17 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
 
 
 
APPROVED:  
 


Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  


Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  


Tim Lipinski:  ______________ _ ______  


Richard Holmer        


Pip Marquez de la Plata       





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:36 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:38 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:39 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:39 p.m.)*

		VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:03 p.m.)

		VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS

		(8:14 p.m.)



		VIII. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (8:17 p.m.)

		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


AGENDA 
March 3, 2016, Regular Meeting  


District Offices, 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B 
Guerneville, California 


6:30 p.m. 
 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible 
to everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of 
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager 
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are 
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 


I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 
(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the February 4, 2016 Regular Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  Please note: Correspondence received 


regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda is not itemized here, but will be 
attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and addressed with that 
item during the Board meeting 







 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 
the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE 


 
A. Discussion/Action re Resolution 16-01, Accepting the FY 2014-15 Audit (Est. 


time 20 min.) 
 
B. Discussion/Action re Resolution 16-02, Authorizing the General Manager to 


Accept the 2016 Capital Improvement Program and to Sign and Record a Notice 
of Completion (Est. time 10 min.) 


 
C. Discussion/Action re Possible USDA Loans and/or Grants for CIP 2017 (Est. 


time 20 min.) 
 
D. Discussion/Action re Draft FY 2016-17 Budget (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
E. Discussion/Action re District Property at 17448 River Lane and approval of a 


willing selling letter (Est. time 15 min.)  
 
 


VI. CLOSED SESSION (Est. time: 10 min.) 
 
 A. Conference with Real Property Negotiators pursuant to Gov. Code Section 


54956.7 
  Property: APN 071-220-068 17448 River Lane (old Vacation Beach well site) 
  Agency negotiator: Steve Mack 
  Negotiating parties: SSWD and Russian River Recreation and Park District 
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (con't.) 
  
 E. Discussion/Action re District Property at 17448 River Lane and approval of a 


willing selling letter (con't.) 
 
 


VII. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
 


VIII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
 


IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA 


 


ADJOURN 


 2







 3


Sweetwater Springs Water District Mission and Goals 
 
The mission of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) is to provide its 
customers with quality water and service in an open, accountable, and cost-effective 
manner and to manage District resources for the benefit of the community and 
environment.  The District provides water distribution and maintenance services to five 
townships adjacent to the Russian River:  


 Guerneville 
 Rio Nido 
 Guernewood Park 
 Villa Grande 
 Monte Rio 
 


GOAL 1: IMPLEMENT SOUND FINANCIAL PRACTICES TO ENSURE EFFECTIVE 
UTILIZATION OF DISTRICT RESOURCES 
 
GOAL 2: PROVIDE RELIABLE AND HIGH QUALITY POTABLE WATER WITH 
FACILITIES THAT ARE PROPERLY CONSTRUCTED, MANAGED AND MAINTAINED 
TO ASSURE SYSTEM RELIABILITY 
 
GOAL 3:  HAVE UPDATED EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PLANS FOR ALL 
REASONABLE, FORESEEABLE SITUATIONS 
 
GOAL 4: DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN A QUALITY WORKFORCE 
 
GOAL 5: PROVIDE EXCELLENT PUBLIC OUTREACH, INFORMATION AND 
EDUCATION 
 
GOAL 6: ENHANCE BOARD COMMUNICATIONS AND INFORMATION 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (con't.)

		IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA



		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: March 3, 2016 
 
 Subject: DISCUSSION/ACTION RE RESOLUTION 16-01, ACCEPTING THE FINAL 


AUDIT FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2015 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
 Approve Resolution 16-01, Accepting the Final Audit for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 


2015. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 (Preparation of the FY 14-15 Audit cost $8,000.) 


 
 
DISCUSSION: 


Our FY 2014-15 Audit was conducted by Michael Celentano, CPA.  The Audit format is 
different than last year - this is the first of a three-year contract with Mr. Celentano.  He 
will be available by telephone during the meeting to answer any questions you have 
about the Audit.   
 
The Audit presents the District's financials using a partial accrual method of accounting, 
which differs from the cash presentation staff prepares for the Board on a quarterly basis.  
New to this year's Audit is the first year of reporting future retirement obligations not yet 
funded.  More information on this new liability and a financial summary of the year is 
included at the beginning of the Audit in a document prepared by staff.   
 
Staff recommends the Board approve Resolution 16-01, Accepting the Final Audit for the 
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2015.  
 







Resolution No. 16-01 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT ACCEPTING THE FINAL 


AUDIT FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2015 
 


 WHEREAS, the Sweetwater Springs Water District is required to have 
annual audits performed relative to the spending of public funds; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Michael Celentano, CPA provides said auditing service and 
is under contract with the District to perform such audits. 
 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of 
the Sweetwater Springs Water District has reviewed the audit as prepared by 
Moss, Levy & Hartzheim for the year ending June 30, 2015, and accepts the 
information contained therein. 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a 
Resolution duly and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors 
of the SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, 
at a meeting held on March 3, 2016, by the following vote. 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Tim Lipinski        
Rich Holmer        
Gaylord Schaap       
Pip Marquez de la Plata      


 
 


           
      Tim Lipinski 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 


 
 
 
 





































































































































		Item V-A - Res 16-01 Accepting the FY 2014-15 Audit

		Item V-A.1 - RES 16-01 -- Accepting Audit for FYE June 30, 2015

		Item V-A.2 - Final FY 2014-15 Audit Report






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 


 
Meeting Date: March 3, 2016 
  
SUBJECT: NOTICE OF COMPLETION FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2016 CIP 
 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve Resolution 16-02 which authorizes the General 
Manager to accept the Fiscal Year (FY) 2016 Capital Improvement Project (CIP as 
substantially complete, and to sign and record a Notice of Completion. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
    
DISCUSSION: 
 
The FY 2016 CIP, which is replacement 3,900 ft of existing mainline and 75 services 
along Canyon 1 Road, Memory Lane, and Memory Park Road in Rio Nido, is substantially 
complete. The Project Engineers, Coastland Engineering (Coastland), have 
communicated that Piazza Construction satisfactorily completed all elements of the 
project. As such it is appropriate for the Board to approve Resolution 16-02 which 
authorizes the General Manager to accept the Project as substantially complete, and to 
sign and record a Notice of Completion.   
 
Sweetwater Springs Water District entered into a contract with Piazza Construction  
(Piazza) for construction of the FY 2016 CIP on May 26, 2015 for a contract price of 
$915,078, plus up to $91,543 in possible change orders, with a projected completion 
date in late November 2015.  The project construction proceeded mostly on schedule 
until near the end when there were delays associated with the off and on rain and 
finishing projects needing dry weather.      
 
The ending project cost was $898,742.58 which is $16,335.42 below the bid 
amount.   Net total change orders for the project were a negative $16,355.42 which 
are included in the ending project cost above and are largely an effect of reduced 
asphalt paving requirements offset by some encountered unexpected conditions 
(tree stumps).   
 
The work done by Piazza has been good and District customers in the affected areas are 
seeing better water quality, more reliable service, better fire protection, and more 
consistent water flow.  The completed project will also reduce system water losses as 
these areas were constant sources of distribution system breaks, and the affected 
customers will have fewer service interruptions due to repair of the leaks.  The 
neighborhoods served by this project have received real, long lasting improvements.     







 
Resolution No. 16-02 


 
A RESOLUTION OF THE SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 


BOARD OF DIRECTORS AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO 


ACCEPT THE FISCAL YEAR 2016 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 


AND TO SIGN AND RECORD A NOTICE OF COMPLETION 


 WHEREAS, Sweetwater Springs Water District (“District”), entered into a construction 
contract with Piazza Construction (“Contractor”) on May 26, 2015 for the construction of the 
District’s Fiscal Year 2016 Capital Improvement Project (CIP) (“Project”), which is replacement 
3,900 ft of existing mainline and 75 services along Canyon 1 Road, Memory Lane, 
and Memory Park Road in Rio Nido; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Project has been overseen by Coastland Engineering (Coastland), who 
provided engineering services for the District on this project; and 


 WHEREAS, Coastland informed the District on February 25, 2016, that the Project has 
been substantially completed; and 


 WHEREAS, Coastland has recommended that the District sign and record a Notice of 
Completion for the project.  


NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE DISTRICT 
AS FOLLOWS: 


 1. The General Manager is hereby authorized to accept the improvements 
constructed as part of the Project.  


2. The General Manager is authorized to sign and record a Notice of Completion 
upon receipt of all necessary completion documentation.   


 I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution duly and 
regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER SPRINGS 
WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on March 3, 2016, by the 
following vote: 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Tim Lipinski        
Gaylord Schaap       
Richard Holmer       
Pip Marquez de la Plata      


 
           


      Tim Lipinski 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 





		Item V-B - 2016 CIP NOC

		Item V-B.1 Res 16-02 2016 CIP Notice of Completion






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date : March 3, 2016  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION REGARDING PROGRESS WITH A POSSIBLE 
LOAN/BOND WITH USDA   
 


RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a presentation by the General Manager on 
the progress with the  bond/grant from USDA to fund the 2017 CIP, and provide 
direction to staff.     


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none 


 
DISCUSSION: 
 
As we discussed at recent Board meeting items, the District does not have sufficient 
funds to construct the 2017 CIP.  We now know that the engineers estimate of probable 
cost, based on the preliminary design, is $1.98 million.  This puts the project clearly in 
the range of needing financing if we choose to do this project on schedule in FY 2017.     
 
At the last two Board meetings, we have discussed the possibility of a US Department of 
Agriculture (USDA) loan/bond to fund the 2017 CIP.  The terms would be 2.5% interest 
with 25% loan forgiveness.   The annual payment would be approximately $60,000.   
 
The timing for getting this bond done is such that the funds likely would not be available 
until the summer some time - July or August.  I have been making progress on 
completing the USDA loan/grant process and have learned about some steps that need 
to be completed prior to submitting the online application: 
 


 We will need completed Preliminary Engineering Reports and Environmental 
Reports.  I am talking with Coastland Engineering about this and expect to have 
a proposal by the Board meeting. 


 
 We need to advertise a notice of intent to enter into a financing agreement with 


USDA and provide an opportunity for the public to comment at a public meeting.  
The soonest public meeting for this to happen is the April 7 Board meeting.  We 
have put in the request for the ad to Sonoma West.   


 
 I'm not certain of the exact bond amount as I was told the engineering costs 


could be included but Coastland has warned me that perhaps those costs cannot 
be included because they weren't competitively bid.  If not included engineering 
costs will be included as match and would replace the cash matching funds that I 
had originally included.   


 







17448 River Lane Issues   2   
November 5, 2015 
                                                                 


 


 I have done nothing about bond counsel - that can wait until the April meeting.  
 
 I may learn of other items that need completion or done differently for this 


process - I've been learning something new every week, it seems.   
 
 
 
  
 
   





		Meeting Date : March 3, 2016 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-D   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: March 3, 2016  
 
SUBJECT:  DRAFT FY 2016-2017 BUDGET 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a report on the Draft District FY 2016-2017 
Budget, including the District’s proposed water rates based on a 3% increase, and 
review of the Draft Budget, and provide direction to staff and the ad hoc Budget 
subcommittee.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Provides financial direction for FY 2016-2017. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The ad hoc Budget Subcommittee has had two meetings to discuss the draft 2016-
2017 Budget which is being presented at this meeting (the line item draft Budget is 
attached as Exhibit A).  Among the issues we have discussed (and shared in part 
with the Board at the February meeting): 
 
Proposed FY 2016-2017 Water Rates 
 
At the February meeting the Board gave direction to proceed with a 3% increase for 
District water rates.  This fits in with the 9-year plan for modest annual rate 
increases to develop sustainable capital funding.  Table 2 shows the proposed water 
rates and Table 3 shows a comparison of water bills with current and proposed rates 
for typical customers.  The District is on schedule to mail out Proposition 218 notices 
by March 21 to District property owners.   
 
Fiscal Year 2015-2016 (FY16) Budget 
 
The draft FY16 Budget detail is attached as Exhibit A.  Figures 2 and 3 show the 
relative total expenses and revenues projected for the Operating and Capital Budget.  
The draft Budget has been discussed by the ad hoc Budget Subcommittee in two 
meetings in January and February.  Staff have met several times to develop the 
appropriate line item amounts for the Operating section of the Budget.     
 
Assumptions used to develop the Operating section of the Budget include: 
 


 Water Usage and Base Rate and Capital Debt Reduction Charges will be raised 
3%.    


 Water Usage revenues are based on flat water sales and on mid-year water 
sales projections, thus the end of year FY17 water usage revenues are 







DRAFT FY 2016-2017 BUDGET   2 
March 3, 2016 
 


 


estimated to increase by 3% over the amount projected at the end of FY16.  
The ongoing drought situation may further decrease water sales, thus affecting 
Water Usage charge revenue, but we expect this to balance out over the full 
year. 


 Salaries and Retirement have been adjusted to reflect the recent Union 
Memorandum of Understanding.  
 


Highlights of the Draft FY17 Operating Budget include: 
 


 The 3% water rate increase will increase District revenues by approximately 
$57,000.   


 Supplies and Services were scrutinized to reflect actual expected costs and 
have decreased approximately $8,000 compared to the FY16 Budgeted.      


 Expenditures for Tanks and Facilities include a liner for the Park Avenue Tank 
and road improvements for the Monte Rio Tanks. 


 We have included a truck purchase estimated at $45,000.     
 The transfer to the Capital Improvement Reserve Fund (CIRF) is $330,000 


which is a reflection of the effect of decreased water sales during this extended 
drought.   
 


With the Capital section of the Budget, comparisons between annual budget 
expenses are less meaningful because completely different capital projects are 
undertaken from year to year.  The major changes in this Budget is the acquisition of 
a USDA loan/bond and the construction of a larger-than-usual project, the Old River 
Road/River Road water main replacement project which has an estimated cost of 
approximately  $1.98 million plus engineering and legal costs.  The Budget includes a 
USDA loan/bond at $2.1 million and that will be adjusted as we learn more about 
what USDA will loan the District.       
 
In most years the following year CIP is included in the Budget because the contract 
award is planned for the prior-year fiscal year even though most costs will not 
happen until the following fiscal year.  That is not the case in this Budget because the 
2018 CIP is relatively small (Monte Rio Treatment Plant filter replacement) and all 
costs are not expected until FY 2018.       
 
Total District debt is $11,730,752 as of the end of Calendar Year 2015: 
 
USDA GO Bonds:   $1,622,728 
State Loans:  $   980,093 
Private Placement Loan: $2,186,931 
Cap One Bond:  $6,941,000 
 
 
District Reserves 
 







DRAFT FY 2016-2017 BUDGET   3 
March 3, 2016 
 


 


The FY16 Budget lists the District Reserve Policy amounts approved in September 
2009:   
 


 Operating Budget Cash Reserve – a reserve based on 15% of the Operating 
Budget expenses to allow for prompt payment of District bills at the start of a 
fiscal year. 


 Operating Reserve – 25% of the Operating Budget expenses for economic 
downturn or other economic crisis, and emergencies and disaster-related 
expenses. 


 Debt Repayment Reserve - 25% of the annual debt payments to ensure 
funding is available to repay existing District debt. 


 Capital Reserve – 25% of the nominal Capital Budget of $1 million for similar 
issues with the capital program. 
 


The draft Budget shows a Policy Reserve of $1,207,907 and $2,490,073 in 
Reserves Above Policy at the end of the fiscal year.       
 
Proposition 218 Notice 
 
Proposition 218 requires that 45 day notice be given to all property owners in the 
area affected by a proposed rate increase.  Notice for proposed water rate increases 
will need to be mailed to all property owners by March 21, 2016.  The Notice will 
provide for an increase to the Base Rate and Water Usage Charges and Capital Debt 
Reduction Charge of up to 3% for FY 2017 and will include the proposed rate 
schedules and a protest form.    
 
   


 
  


Table 1.  FY 2016-2017 Budget Preparation  
Review Capital Improvement Program  December 3, 2015 


Budget Committee meetings February/March 
2016 


Draft Budget to Board for Discussion/Action, 
Including Direction on Water Rates 


March 3, 2016 


Prop 218 Mailing for Water Rate Increase, if 
necessary 


March 21, 2016 


Draft Budget to Board for Discussion/Action April 7, 2016 


Approve Budget 
 Prop 218 Public Hearing on Rates, if 


necessary


May 5, 2016 


 







DRAFT FY 2016-2017 BUDGET   4 
March 3, 2016 
 


 


Table 2.  Proposed Sweetwater Springs Water District Bimonthly Water 
Rates for FY 2016-17, 3% Increase for Water Usage and Base Rates, and 


CDRC 


Meter 
Size 
(in) 


Base 
Rate Water Usage Rate 


Capital 
Debt 


Reduction 
Charge 


Base Rate 
+ CDRC 


    Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 Tier 4     


   
        
1.35  


       
2.75  


        
4.10  


       
5.95      


    


Max 
Usage 
(Hcf) 


Max 
Usage 
(Hcf) 


Max 
Usage 
(Hcf) 


Max 
Usage 
(Hcf)     


0.625 
         
59.70  8 20 80 >80 $10.90  $70.60 


1 
        
149.25  20 50 200 >200 $27.25  $176.50 


1.5 
        
298.50  40 100 400 >400 $54.50  $353.00 


2 
        
477.60  64 160 640 >640 $87.20  $564.80 


 The Base Rate and Capital Debt Reduction Charge (CDRC) increases for meter sizes larger than 
0.625 apply only to Commercial and Public accounts.   


 The Base Rate and CDRC are also increased by the Multiple Unit Multiplier of 0.55 for Multi-
Family accounts.  For examples, with a 2 unit account, the Base Rate is $92.54  and the CDRC is 
$16.90. 


        
 
 


Table3.  3% Water Rate Increase Effect on Typical Water Users by Class  (100 cubic 
feet (Units), FY16-17 


  
Single Family 
Residential 


Multi-Family 
Residential, 2 


Units 
Commercial 5/8 


Meter 
Number of 
Accounts 3060 284 135 
  Median 90% Median 90% Median 90% 
Median Water Use 7 22 12 32 15 82 


Median Bill Current  $78.00   $119.15 
 


$122.45  $176.28  $97.90   $362.75 
Median Bill 
Proposed  $80.05   $122.60 


 
$125.63  $181.42  $100.65   $372.30 


Bimonthly 
Difference  $2.05   $3.45  $3.18  $5.14  $2.75   $9.55 
% Increase 2.6% 2.9% 2.6% 2.9% 2.8% 2.6%


 


 







DRAFT FY 2016-2017 BUDGET   5 
March 3, 2016 
 


 


Figure 1. FY 2017 Expenses
Total = $5.0 Million


(Includes FY17 CIP construction)


Capital Improvements
44%


Salary and Benefits
24%


Debt Repayment
21%


Services and Supplies
11%


 
 
 


Figure 2.  FY17 Sources of Funds to Pay for Expenses
Total = $5.5 Million


$3.3 Million Revenues + $2.2 Million USDA Bond 


Base Rate Charge
27%


Water Usage Charge
11%


CDRC
5%


Assessments
14%


Interest
0%


Rent, Other
2%


USDA Bond
41%


 







EXHIBIT A.  SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
DRAFT OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET, 2016-2017


1


FY 2016-17 DRAFT OPERATING BUDGET
 


FY 14-15
FINAL (CASH)*  


 FY15-16 
BUDGET


FY 15-16
Projected  


 FY 16-17
BUDGET 


 Difference 
FY17-FY16 
Budgets FY 16-17 Original notes


REVENUE
OPERATING REVENUE


4031 · Water Bill Revenue


4031.1. · Capital Debt Reduction Cha 254,854 261,565            262,500             270,375          8,810           3% rate increase


4031.1. · Water Sales - Base Rate 1,397,015 1,434,921        1,438,925         1,482,093       47,172         3% rate increase


571,340 587,100           579,962            597,361 10,261 Flat sales, 3% increase


4031.1. · Total Water Sales 2,223,209 2,022,021        2,018,887 2,079,454 57,433         


Total OPERATING REVENUE 2,223,209 2,283,586 2,281,387 2,349,828 66,242         


NON-OPERATING REVENUE


4445 · Grant Proceeds 0 0 0 -                     -                   


1700 · Interest 6,754 7,500               7,500                7,500              -                   


3600 · Construction New Services 13,663 7,000               12,000              7,000              -                   


3601 · Construction Service Upgrades 2,122 2,000               2,000                2,000              -                   


4032 · Rent
78,455 90,482             88,350               94,346            3,864           


Crystal $1361/mo = $16,322
AT&T $6502/mo = $78,024


4040 · Miscellaneous Income
25,476 1,500               18,100               1,500              -                   


USBank CC refunds
So. Cty Credit 


4117 · SCWA Reimbursement 2,495 2,500               2,500                2,500              -                   


Total NON-OPERATING REVENUE 128,965 110,982 130,450 114,846 3,864           


Total Income 2,352,174 2,394,568 2,411,837 2,464,674 70,106         


EXPENSES
OPERATING EXPENSES


SALARY & BENEFITS


Salary


5910 · Wages 679,152 734,732 806,500 823,000          88,268         Union MOU includes retirement pay provisions


5912 · Overtime 22,998 31,479 34,000 34,400            2,921           


5916 · On-Call Pay 30,200 34,083 35,000 37,700            3,617           


5918 · Extra help - Contract 36,919 36,919 34,100 37,000            81                


769,269 837,213 909,600 932,100 94,887         


Benefits


5500 · Flex Spending 1,272 0 0 0 -                   


5920 · Retirement 114,526 124,311 81,800 84,460 (39,851)        employees pay employee share


5922 · Payroll Taxes - Employer 14,044 14,438 14,067 14,355 (83)               


5930 · Health/Dental/Vision/AFLA 129,894 145,668 128,000 146,000          332              


5931 · Retiree health 10,453 7,000 7,000 7,000 -                   


5940 · Workers Comp Insurance 16,939 36,000 36,000 36,000 -                   Year 2 of high rates due to injuries


287,128 327,417 266,867 287,815 (39,602)        


Total SALARY & BENEFITS 1,056,397 1,164,630 1,176,467 1,219,915 55,285         


SERVICES & SUPPLIES


Communications  


6040-I · Internet service 1,819 1,800               1,800                1,850              50                
Comcast -$84/month: $1008
GotoMyPC $21.90/mo = $263
Sonic.net $143.7/Qtr. (A) = $575


6040-C · Cell Phones 4,728 4,300               4,300                4,050              (250)             


Verizon $65/mo: $780
Misc parts/holders: $200
Cell phone reimburse $255/mo - $3060


6040-P · Pagers & Radios 642 600                  500                    620                 20                
American Messaging $35/mo: $420
Misc. parts/batteries: $200


4031.1. · Water Sales - Usage 
Charges + Other


Total Salary


Total Benefits


2/25/2016







EXHIBIT A.  SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
DRAFT OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET, 2016-2017


2


FY 14-15
FINAL (CASH)*  


 FY15-16 
BUDGET


FY 15-16
Projected  


 FY 16-17
BUDGET 


 Difference 
FY17-FY16 
Budgets FY 16-17 Original notes


6040-T · Telephones 18,357 19,950             19,950              17,000            (2,950)          
Ans. Service: $2000
Phones: $1,200/mo: $14,400


25,546 26,650 26,550 23,520 (3,130)          


Insurances


6101 · Liability & Auto Ins. 31,737  32,200             32,200              32,200            -                   


31,737 32,200 32,200 32,200 -                   


Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles


6140 · Vehicle Maintenance
25,338 16,000             18,000              18,000            2,000           


6151 · Office Maintenance 6,220 5,700               5,400                 6,200              500              


Alarm System - $130/qtr.=$520
PacketFusion maint. contract - $1500/year
The Compute Wizard - $175/mo = $2100/year 
Copy mach. maint - 1200/yr
Call One - $325/yr
Landscaping - $300/yr
Misc / Other - $250


31,558 21,700 23,400 24,200 2,500           


Maint/Repair - Facilities -                   


6085 · Janitorial Services 7,185 8,140               8,000                8,500              360              


Altech (office Janitorial): $212/mo  = $2544
United Site Svces (port-o-lets): $260/mo = 
$3120
Sunrise Garbage $1600
Sewer - GVTP ($1200)


33,196 5,000               5,000                5,000              -                   


26,352 35,000             50,000              50,000            15,000         Not accounting for "In- House Const." off-set


97,275 60,000             45,000              45,000            (15,000)        estimating (1) well rehab


6143 · Generator Maintenance 2,810 3,500               4,200                2,000              (1,500)          
This is an off-year for the bi-annual maintenace 
service.


166,818 111,640 112,200 110,500 (1,140)          


Miscellaneous Expenses  


6280 · Memberships 9,486 9,700               9,700                10,400            700              


USA $165
AWWA $420
CSDA $5700
CUWCC $2600 (reimbursed by SCWA)
MR Chamber -$50
RR Chamber - $150
Cal Rural $1100
WCWW $200


6303 · Claims 2,054 1,500               1,500                 1,500              -                   


6593 · Governmental Fees 18,872 20,500             15,000              18,400            (2,100)          


Elections costs: $1,000
Notice of Determination $230
Parcel List $265
LAFCO $6,400
Hazmat $1100
Operator license fees $400
System fees $10,000


30,412 31,700 26,200 30,300 (1,400)          


Office Expense -                   


6410 · Postage 16,537  16,000             16,000              16,000            -                   


Billing (2000 pieces @ $.485 X 12 months) = 
$11,650
Prop 218 mailing:  4000 X .485 = $1,940
1 extra mailing: 3600 X .485 = $1,750
Other mail 


6235 · Treatment Sys/Well 
Repairs


Total Maint/Repair - Facilities


Total Miscellaneous Expenses


Total Insurances


6100 · SCADA System


6180 · Distribution System 
Repairs


Total Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles


Total Communications


2/25/2016







EXHIBIT A.  SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
DRAFT OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET, 2016-2017


3


FY 14-15
FINAL (CASH)*  


 FY15-16 
BUDGET


FY 15-16
Projected  


 FY 16-17
BUDGET 


 Difference 
FY17-FY16 
Budgets FY 16-17 Original notes


6430 · Printing Expense 5,206 7,500               7,500                 7,500              -                   


Window Envelopes $1100
Return Envelopes $950
Water Bills + Autopay $1500
Doorhangers $400
Turn Off Notices $600
Letterhead $250
Misc. Inserts $250
Prop 218 notice: $700
Checkblanks $200
Tagbooks $700


6461 · Office Supplies 3,973 4,000               4,000                4,000              -                   


Supplies $3000
Plants/Landscaping $150
Christmas Tree $80
Christmas party $400
Business lunches $75
Paper products/coffee $250


6800 · Subscriptions/Legal Notic 974 1,100               1,100                1,100              -                   


Press Democrat $320
Legal Notices $400
Sonoma West $70
Safety Meeting Outlines $85


6890 · Computers/Software 2,732 3,000               2,800                3,000              -                   


Antivirus softsware $120
Cloud software $70
Misc $400
Quickbooks upgrade $300
3 workstations - $2000 (KG/LK/CMH)


6579 · Furniture
0 500                  500                   500                 -                   


29,422 32,100 31,900 32,100            -                   


Operating Supplies


6300 · Chemicals 15,617 18,000             18,500 18,500            500              


6880 · Tools and Equipment
2,938 5,500               7,000 6,000              500              Pipe locator: $1,000., Cut-off saw $900.


6881 · Safety Equipment 990 1,000               1,000 1,000              -                   


19,545 24,500 26,500 25,500 1,000           


Professional Services


6083 · Laundry Service 2,183 3,400               3,400                3,000              (400)             Mission $90/2 weeks = $2340


6514 · Lab/Testing Fees 12,245 15,000             15,000              15,000            -                   


6570 · Consultant Fees 22,565 13,000             15,000              18,000            5,000           


IEDA $12,500
Open Spatial (Mapping): $4,200
Computer Wizard (non-maintenance work) 
$800
Misc. (John Thompson?) -$500 


6590 · Engineering 0 -                      -                       -                   


6610 · Legal 15,287 20,000             20,000              20,000            -                   


6630 · Audit/Accounting 34,572 34,500             29,600               34,500            -                   


ADP $54/2 weeks = $1300
Authorize.net $500
Auditor $8,000
Harbortouch $16,000
E-check fees = $1200
West America fees $230/mo = $2760
1099 = $175
County Accounting Fees = $700


86,852 85,900 83,000 90,500 4,600           


Rents & Leases


6820 · Equipment 2,347 2,000               2,000                2,000              -                   Action rents: $2000


6840 · Building & Warehouse
27,495 28,100             27,675              28,800            700              2% rent increase: $2,400/mo = $28,800


29,842 30,100 29,675 30,800 700              


Transportation & Travel  


7120 · Seminars & related travel 2,898 2,650               2,650                 2,650              -                   
JK - $250
LK and CMH - $400 
Field: $1500, GM - $500


7201 · Vehicle Gas 19,254 25,000             20,000               23,000            (2,000)          


7300 · Travel Reimbursements 5,731 6,400               6,400                6,400              -                   
SM - $50/mo = $600 (A)
KG $400/mo = $4800 (F)
CMH/LK/JK $80/mo = $960 (A)


Total Operating Supplies


Total Office Expense


Total Professional Services


Total Rents & Leases


2/25/2016







EXHIBIT A.  SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
DRAFT OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET, 2016-2017


4


FY 14-15
FINAL (CASH)*  


 FY15-16 
BUDGET


FY 15-16
Projected  


 FY 16-17
BUDGET 


 Difference 
FY17-FY16 
Budgets FY 16-17 Original notes


27,883 34,050 29,050 32,050 (2,000)          


Uniforms


6021.1 · Boots 1,230 1,500               1,500                1,500              -                   $205 X 7 = $1450


6021.3 · T-shirts 2,250 1,500               1,500                 1,500              -                   


6021.4 · Jackets 0 240                  240                   240                 -                   2 jackets


3,480 3,240 3,240 3,240 -                   


Utilities


7320 · Electricity 85,748 100,000           100,000 90,000            (10,000)         


7321 · Propane 2,262 2,000               2,000 3,000              1,000           


88,010 102,000 102,000 93,000 (9,000)          


Total SERVICES & SUPPLIES 571,105 535,780 525,915 527,910 (7,870)          


Total OPERATING EXPENSES 1,627,502 1,700,410 1,702,382 1,747,825 47,415         


OPERATING SURPLUS/DEFICIT $724,672 $694,158 $709,455 $716,849 22,691$       


FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES


8517 · Field/Office equipment 8,113 -                        


8573 · Vehicles 35,656 50,000             37,998 45,000            (5,000)          New vehicle


8511.1 · Tank/Facilities Sites 7,119 22,000             9,000 22,000            -                   
Monte Rio Tanks Road - $10,000
Park Ave Tank Liner - $8.000,


8511.6 · Leasehold Improvements  -                     -                   


Total FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES 50,888 72,000 46,998 67,000 (5,000)          


TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS


8620.7 · Tfers to CIRF for CDR Revenue 253,947 261,565 262,500 270,375 8,810           


8620.3 · Tfers to CIRF 260,000 320,000 340,000 330,000          10,000         


8620.5 · Tfers to Building Fund 15,000 15,000             15,000 15,000            -                   


8620.2 · Tfers to In-House Constr 25,000 25,000             25,000 25,000            -                   


Total TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 553,947 621,565 642,500 640,375 18,810         


SURPLUS/DEFICIT 119,837 593 19,957 9,475 8,882           


CAPITAL BUDGET
REVENUE/SOURCES OF FUNDS


Annual Assessment - New Services 52,719 27,000             27,000              27,000            -                   


Annual Assessment (County) 720,216 710,000           710,000            710,000          -                   


Prior Year Assessment 55,059 40,000             40,000              40,000            -                   


Capital Debt Reduction Charge 253,947 261,565           262,500            270,375          8,810           


Interest 11,995 25,000             6,000                8,000              
(17,000)        


Reduced to reflect lower amount and lower 
interest rates


Funds from Reserves 683,000 630,000           790,000            No reserves used because of USDA Bond


USDA 2016 Bond 2,100,000       
New Bond from USDA based on projected 
costs


Transfers to CIRF from Operations 260,000 320,000           340,000            330,000          10,000         


Transfers to In-House Constr. from Operatio 25,000 25,000             25,000              25,000            -                   


TOTAL REVENUE 2,061,936 2,038,565 2,200,500 3,510,375 1,471,810    


EXPENSES
DEBT PAYMENTS


Gen. Obligation Bonds Payments 0 64,284             64,284              64,284            -                   USDA refinance resolution
Cap One Revenue Bond 566,508 566,508           566,508            566,508          -                   


State Loan Payments 170,172 170,300           170,300            170,300          -                   


Private Placement Loan 234,013 234,014           234,014            234,014          -                   


TOTAL DEBT PAYMENTS 970,693 1,035,106 1,035,106 1,035,106 -                   


2014 CIP Design and Construction Mgmgt 1,234 -                   


2014 CIP Construction  -                     


2014 Mill Street Emergency  


2015 CIP Design and Construction Mgmt -                  -                   -                 


2015 CIP Construction 971,912 -                  -                   


2016 CIP Design and Construction Mgmt 64,917 135,000           135,000            


2016 CIP Construction
800,000           916,424 Constract Award amount plus encrhmnt permit


2017 CIP Bond Counsel for Financing 50,000            Estimated cost of bond counsel for financing


2017 CIP Design and Construction Mgmt 175,000           65,000              157,000          Design of 2017 CIP in FY16, CM in FY17


Total Uniforms


Total Utilities


Total Transportation & Travel


2/25/2016







EXHIBIT A.  SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
DRAFT OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET, 2016-2017


5


FY 14-15
FINAL (CASH)*  


 FY15-16 
BUDGET


FY 15-16
Projected  


 FY 16-17
BUDGET 


 Difference 
FY17-FY16 
Budgets FY 16-17 Original notes


2017 CIP Construction
895,400           1,980,000       


Based on preliminary design costs


2018 CIP Design and Construction Mgmt No design costs for 2018 CIP


2018 CIP Construction
No costs; Award in FY2018 (Treatment Plant 
Filter)


In-House Construction Projects 37,463 25,000             45,000              25,000            -                   


Mapping Project 14,811 -                  -                   


Total Capital Expenses 1,090,337            2,030,400        1,161,424         2,212,000       181,600       


TOTAL EXPENSES 2,061,030 3,065,506 2,196,530 3,247,106 181,600       


End of FY17 Accrual Expenses 3,247,106


Total Expenses = Accrual Expenses 
because no FY18 Obligation in FY17


SURPLUS/DEFICIT 906 -1,026,941 3,970 263,269
1,290,210    


503,080 349,052 370,351 359,743 10,691         
Net Operating Revenues + Assessments 
+CDRC+Cap Interest-Total Debt Payments


FUND AND LOAN BALANCES (EOY)
DISTRICT  RESERVES AND FUND AND LOAN BALANCES 


Operating Budget Cash Reserve 303,535               255,061           255,061            262,174          7,113           


399,812               425,102           425,102            436,956          
11,854         


260,829               258,777           258,777            258,777          
-                   


Capital Reserve 250,000               250,000           250,000            250,000          -                   


   Total District Policy 1,214,176            1,188,939        1,188,940         1,207,907       18,968         


TOTAL Reserves EOY 2,988,435            2,442,556        2,824,862         3,697,980       1,255,424    


   Reserves Above (below) Policy 1,774,259            1,253,616        1,635,922         2,490,073       1,236,457    


ACCRUAL TOTAL Reserves EOY 3,697,980       No FY18 Obligations


   Accrual Reserves Above (below) Policy 2,490,073       Ditto


DISTRICT FUNDS


529,149           169,743      187,354            1,165,016       995,273       


399,812           255,061      274,425            263,943          8,882           


303,535           425,102      425,102            425,102          -                   


510,829         508,777      508,777            508,777          
(1)                 


104,315           
123,106      84,315              104,315          


(18,791)        


165,850         180,850      180,850            195,850          15,000         


804,505         800,522      800,522            800,522          
-                   


-                  
64,284        64,284              64,284            


-                   


170,438               170,172 170,172       170,172          -                   


171,370           
171,370      171,370       171,370          


-                   
Not in Total Reserves


STATE LOANS RESERVES 
(0800&1000)


CAPITAL AND DEBT POLICY 
RESERVE (1100)


BUILDING (0200)
CAP ONE AND CITIZENS BANK 
LOAN (1200)
FEDERAL LOANS AND BONDS 
(0400)


STATE LOANS (0700,0900)


CIRF (7106-0600)


OPERATING RESERVE ( 0300)


OPERATIONS (0100)


IN HOUSE CONSTRUCTION 
(0500)


Operating Budget Reserve (10%+15% 
of Operating Exp)


Debt Repayment Reserve (25% of Debt 
pmt)


Net Capital Funding


2/25/2016





		Item V-D - FY 2016-2017 Draft Budget

		Meeting Date: March 3, 2016 



		Item V-D.1 - Exhibit A. Draft FY17 Budget

		Combined








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-E 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date : March 3, 2016  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION REGARDING DISTRICT PROPERTY AT 17448 
RIVER LANE, GUERNEVILLE AND APPROVAL OF WILLING SELLING LETTER  
 


RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a presentation by the General Manager on 
progress with sale of the District property at 17448 River Lane, Guerneville and provide 
direction to staff, including possible approval of a motion to prepare and submit a 
willing selling letter.     


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none 


 
DISCUSSION: 
 
17448 River Lane, Guerneville, is a property of approximately one acre in Vacation 
Beach, Guerneville.  It was formerly the site of a District well which has been long 
abandoned.  The Board has discussed issues regarding this property at the September 
meeting, heard from a neighboring property's owners, Mr. and Mrs. O'Flynn, and a 
subcommittee comprising Rich Holmer and Sukey Robb-Wilder was appointed to assist 
the General Manager to investigate this item more fully.  In February I discussed my 
efforts to inform the Russian River Recreation and Parks District (RRR&PD) and the 
neighborhood about this possibility and was directed to keep at it. 
 
Progress: 
 
I called Hans Bruhner about the matching grant possibility - he expressed thanks for 
the contact and said he would be contacting others. I have not heard back from him or 
Mr. Herrold who I had contacted earlier.   
 
I have received communications from the RRR&PD about their interest in meeting with 
the Open Space District to discuss the matching grant program.  That meeting was held 
on February 24 with Jennifer Kuszmar of the Open Space District, John Uhniak and 
Steve Jackson of RRR&PD, and me at the Open Space District Office in Santa Rosa.  
From that meeting I have learned: 
 
RRR&PD is interested in purchasing the property in conjunction with the Open Space 
District matching funds program.  RRR&PD Board members still have some outstanding 
issues to work out (exact location of parcel boundaries, particularly on the River side), 
but they appeared very interested when we met at the Open Space District meeting.   
 
Applying for the matching funds is the RRR&PD's responsibility.  The conservation 
easement and recreation covenant is between RRR&PD and the Open Space District. 







17448 River Lane Issues   2   
March 3, 2016 
                                                                 


 


The action/direction required by the Board for this meeting is to affirm that we are a 
willing seller.   My understanding is that the terms and conditions do not need to be 
agreed to at this time.  The Board may wish to move into closed session to discuss this 
and such a session is agendized for this meeting.  Time is of the essence for this as the 
grant/funding application must be submitted by March 31.   
 
 





		Meeting Date : March 3, 2016 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VII   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: March 3, 2016  
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1. Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in January were 17,189 units (39.5 AF, 
Guerneville cycle) and production was 48.1 AF.  Compared to one year ago, sales and 
production were lower (40.8 AF and 49.9 AF, respectively).  The water lost percentage 
stayed the same (22.2) compared to December.   The reduction from January 2013, the 
State Board standard, was 15.0%, just below the State mandate of 16%., but we are still 
averaging approximately 23% for the summer/fall/winter (May-January).  GPCD for January 
was 55.2.  Figure 1 shows sales, production and % difference since 2008.   


 
2. Leaks:  In January we had 5 total leaks and spent 30.25 man-hours on them.   Those are 


fewer leaks and man-hours compared to the prior month and compared to January one year 
ago (17 leaks, 149.75 man-hours).  Figure 2 shows service and main leaks separately with 
a total breaks line as well.       


   
3.  Guerneville Rainfall:  We are in the fifth month of an El Nino rain year and rainfall 


amounts have dropped off so far for February - less than 2 inches.  Figure 3 shows historical 
rainfall compared to this year's rain. In the Fall we were worrying about flooding from all the 
rain we were expecting this winter, but we're not even at last year's levels (which did have 
minor flooding in December 2014).                     


 
4. 2016/2017 CIP:   The Notice of Completion for the 2016 CIP is on the agenda at last, so 


that project is wrapped up.   We had a 50% design meeting on the 2017 CIP on February 
25.  It's going well; all we need now is funding.            


   
5. Toilet Rebate/Direct Install Program:   No toilet rebates reported for February. 
 
6. In-House Construction Projects: In January six in-house construction projects were 


reported: replacement of a service and relocation of the meter on Morningside Drive. (33 
man-hours), replacement of services on Center Way, Willow Road, and Wright Drive (26, 33 
and 37 man-hours, respectively), construction new service on Solar Ridge/Hwy 116, 
construction done by Von Renner Construction and paid for by customer (0 man-hours), and 
replacement of 85 ft of 2" main and one service on Morningside Drive (54.5 man-hours).  


 
7. Gantt Chart:   The Gantt Chart for March has the draft Budget presented to the Board - 


that's happening - and ongoing design of the 2017 CIP reported above.          
 







General Manager’s Report  Page 2 of 4 
March 3, 2016 
 


 
 


Figure 1.  Water Production and Sales 12 Month Moving Averages
Sweetwater Springs Water District Since September 2008 


0


200


400


600


800


1,000


1,200


Sep-08 Mar-09 Sep-09 Mar-10 Sep-10 Mar-11 Sep-11 Mar-12 Sep-12 Mar-13 Sep-13 Mar-14 Sep-14 Mar-15 Sep-15


S
al


es
 a


n
d


 P
ro


d
u


ct
io


n
 (


A
F


)


5.0%


10.0%


15.0%


20.0%


25.0%


30.0%


35.0%


D
if


fe
re


n
ce


 (
%


)


Sales


Production


%Difference







General Manager’s Report  Page 3 of 4 
March 3, 2016 
 


 Figure 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Main and Service Pipeline 
Breaks 


Moving Annual Average Since September 2008


-


50


100


150


200


250


300


350


400


Sep-
08


Jan-
09


May-
09


Sep-
09


Jan-
10


May-
10


Sep-
10


Jan-
11


May-
11


Sep-
11


Jan-
12


May-
12


Sep-
12


Jan-
13


May-
13


Sep-
13


Jan-
14


May-
14


Sep-
14


Jan-
15


May-
15


Sep-
15


Jan-
16


B
re


ak
s


Main Breaks


Service Breaks


Total Leaks


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Figure 3.  Guerneville Cumulative Monthly Rainfall


0


10


20


30


40


50


60


70


O
cto


be
r


Nov
em


be
r


Dec
em


be
r


Ja
nu


ar
y


Feb
ru


ar
y


M
ar


ch
Apr


il
M


ay
Ju


ne Ju
ly


Aug
us


t


Sep
te


m
be


r


P
re


c
ip


it
a


ti
o


n
 (


in
)


GV 2009


Guerneville Avg


GV 2011


Dryest (1977)


2015


2016


07-15 Avg


-







 
Jan-15 Feb-15 Mar-15 Apr-15 May-15 Jun-15 Jul-15 Aug-15 Sep-15 Oct-15 Nov-15 Dec-15 Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16 Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 FY17+


Ongoing Activity
Board Action
Other Milestone
Current Month


Projected 
Completion
/
Milestone 
Date


Crystal Communications Lease
2014-15 Budget Preparation


        Capital Improvement Program 
Board Discussion 
        Staff Budget Preparation Begins
        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews 
Draft Budget
        Draft Budget to Board for 
Discussion/Action
        Approve Budget


Capital Projects
        Update/Review District CIP


        2016 CIP Design


        2016 CIP Award of Contract


        2016 CIP Construction Starts


        2017 CIP Design


        2017 CIP Award of Contract


        2017 CIP Construction Starts


Urban Water Management Plan Jul-16


Water Rights SCWA Protest ??


Emergency Response Plan Review
Building Lease


        Lease Renewal July-17
Policies and Procedures


        Other Policy
        Overall Review


Board and General Manager Annual Review


Figure 4.  Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt Chart


By Activity
Action Item/Milestone


 
 





		Meeting Date: March 3, 2016 



